Once Upon A Time in North Park
Plymouth Church

by Joan Campbell

Plymouth Congregational Church, at the comer of Pershirmées and University,
is one of North Park's well known churches.

In 1908 a neighborhood Sunday school was established airtieedf Mr. and Mrs.
Robert Dick at 3755 Villa Terrace. As attendance gregrRéverend Henry Miller
started Sunday afternoon services in 1911.The next yeauglbpdace of worship was
erected on 28th Street near Wightman and incorporatétboch 15, 1912. as "Park
Villas Congregational Church of San Diego".

George Marston gave several lots on University Aventkad&hurch and in 1922,
plans were made to build a building with one room toeserved for a branch library.
The First Congregational Church at Sixth and A Straetsthe Southern California
Conference loaned money for the building. The congregatited to change the name
of the church to the "Plymouth Center of the First gegational Church - the
Community Church”. This was accomplished on July 17, 1922wd®n 1923 and 1927,
George Marston paid off the major part of the $6,500 loagatie Conference and First
Church canceled their loan.

A new social hall, Barbour Hall, and a new officelthumig were built in 1956. In 1962,
the church celebrated its fiftieth anniversary. During time the land to the south was
purchased, where a one-story Sunday school unit wasabdillledicated in 1967.

In 1960, the congregation instructed the Board of Trustesmgider whether it

would be to the church’s advantage to remain where it mwage to a new location or to
rebuild. The results were presented to the congregdttiwould be "Wasted money"
($250-$500) to have a professional survey made concerning movimgdeing would
be “face lifting”, with the minimum estimated at $9,900¢eTikelihood was that more
problems would be discovered during remodeling. Termite damagelso a problem in
the structure.

The recommended alternative was to rebuild. parthherbasis that to buy land
elsewhere in North Park and to build upon it would costiethee same as rebuilding
($70,000) after investing in the land and materials the mtivagycould be realized
from selling the property on University/Pershing.

The congregation decided to rebuild. This included rebuildiagstimday school
structure to make it two stories, which would be the secoadepbf the project.



The next several years were taken up with fund-raisiogtefof every kind. A contract
was signed with the San Diego County Council of Churchése Council

would raise $20,000 for Plymouth Congregational, they wouldwe&b of the

money A "new church" contract was signed in 1966. Tweleesyef effort and
fund-raising passed and the new church was finally readysfa The dedication
ceremony was on November 19, 1978.

Through the years. the church has had many groups formiea Vst congregation,
reflecting the changing needs of the times There wakupples Klub (1958-1964),
Candlelighter (1956-1985), whose aim and object... "shall bedistan the spiritual.
social and financial life of the church”. There was Bygmouth Club (1939-?), the
Widows' Club (1952-1968), which was responsible for sellingeeoffuring the social
hour after church, the Women's Guild (1951-19587?), the Plymatdle C1960-1984).
Some meetings, such as those of the Kupples Klub, memeam socials, card parties,
or picnics. There was also a canasta club and a lridge

In addition to the meetings of church sponsored or azgdralubs. Barbour Hall was
host to meetings of some twenty-six local groups oveptriod from pre-war to post
war. Included were the Howard Circle of Ladies of thA.&., the 1915 Club, Main
Society, Railway Express Clerks, among others. Intiagdyg, the first meetings of the
North Park Development Association were held infthkin 1969-1971 Unfortunately,
further information about these organizations is nothéndhurch files.

The church has been active in missionary work botharJS and abroad. Friendship
School Bags were sent to Mexican Children in 1929 and DbRsiendship to Japan.
Small metal Friendship Chests "lithographed in elevearsbbhnd containing games,
puzzles, paper dolls, handkerchiefs, and beads were sgmildi@n of the Philippines as
part of what was apparently a nationwide effort. Contidlmst were sent to missions
abroad and in the U.S. and this involvement in good works @lpéhly others continues
to this day. During the eighties, the church sponsoredwpgf Marshall Islanders, and
later a Vietnamese family. The church is a membengalith other North Park
churches, of the North Park Christina Agency. It asoks with other local missions.

Until three years ago, Plymouth Church was aligned thighUnited Church of
Christ, which was founded in 1957. The church also mergedhatlongregational
Church and Reformed Church of America. Plymouth was@digvith both
organizations for years. but found it difficult to pay site both, and resigned from
the United Church of Christ.

Plymouth Church also continues its tradition of being aetywe in the community

of North Park. The Head Start program uses the Sumdepbkunit during h

week The Fall Fair is often held on the same dayadltrth Park Toyland Parade.

Large community meetings are frequently held in Barbaall &hd many of us go to the
polls there to vote on Election Day, The church haslzevalued and respected member
of the North Park community for eighty-six years.



